1986

Maxine Tate Grimm, individually and as
Supervised Personal Representative of the Estate of
Edward Miller Grimm; Linda Grimm; Edward
Miller Grimm II; and e. Lavar Tate, as Supervised
Personal Representative of the Estate of Edward
Miller Grimm v. Ethel Grimm Roberts, Rex
Roberts, Juanita Grimm Morris, and Juanita Kegley
Grimm : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_sc1

 Part of the [Law Commons](#)

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Supreme Court; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

Harold G. Christensen, R. Brent Stephens; Snow, Christensen & Martineau; M. David Eckersley; Hought & Eckersley; attorneys for respondents .

Daniel L. Berman, Peggy A. Tomsic; Berman & O'Rourke; attorneys for appellants.

Recommended Citation

Brief of Appellant, *Grimm v. Roberts*, No. 860262.00 (Utah Supreme Court, 1986).

https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_sc1/1149

This Brief of Appellant is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Supreme Court Briefs by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. Policies regarding these Utah briefs are available at http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah_court_briefs/policies.html. Please contact the Repository Manager at hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu with questions or feedback.

UTAH
DOCUMENT
FU

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

0
110
CKET NO. **860262-CA**
In the Matter of the Estate of
~~EDWARD MILLER GRIMM~~

Deceased.

MAXINE TATE GRIMM, individually
and as Supervised Personal
Representative of the Estate of
Edward Miller Grimm; LINDA
GRIMM; EDWARD MILLER GRIMM II;
and E. LAVAR TATE, as Supervised
Personal Representative of the
Estate of Edward Miller Grimm,

Plaintiffs-Appellants,

vs.

ETHEL GRIMM ROBERTS, REX ROBERTS,
JUANITA GRIMM MORRIS, and
JUANITA KEGLEY GRIMM,

Defendants-Respondents.

Case No. 860262

ADDENDUM
BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

APPEAL FROM JUDGMENT OF THE THIRD JUDICIAL
DISTRICT COURT OF TOOELE COUNTY, STATE OF UTAH
HONORABLE JOHN A. ROKICH

Harold G. Christensen, Esq.
R. Brent Stephens, Esq.
SNOW, CHRISTENSEN & MARTINEAU
10 Exchange Place
Eleventh Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84110
Attorneys for Defendants-
Respondents, Ethel Grimm
Roberts, Rex Roberts and
Juanita Grimm Morris

M. David Eckersley, Esq.
HOUPPT & ECKERSLEY
419 Boston Building
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
Attorneys for Defendant-
Respondent, Juanita
Kegley Grimm

Daniel L. Berman, Esq.
Peggy A. Tomsic, Esq.
BERMAN & O'RORKE
50 South Main Street, Suite 1250
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
Attorneys for Plaintiffs-
Appellants

FILED
DEC 1 1986

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

In the Matter of the Estate of)
EDWARD MILLER GRIMM,)
)
Deceased.)
)
MAXINE TATE GRIMM, individually)
and as Supervised Personal)
Representative of the Estate of)
Edward Miller Grimm; LINDA)
GRIMM; EDWARD MILLER GRIMM II;)
and E. LAVAR TATE, as Supervised)
Personal Representative of the)
Estate of Edward Miller Grimm,)
)
Plaintiffs-Appellants,)
)
vs.)
)
ETHEL GRIMM ROBERTS, REX ROBERTS,)
JUANITA GRIMM MORRIS, and)
JUANITA KEGLEY GRIMM,)
)
Defendants-Respondents.)
)
)

Case No. 860262

ADDENDUM
BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

APPEAL FROM JUDGMENT OF THE THIRD JUDICIAL
DISTRICT COURT OF TOOELE COUNTY, STATE OF UTAH
HONORABLE JOHN A. ROKICH

Harold G. Christensen, Esq.
R. Brent Stephens, Esq.
SNOW, CHRISTENSEN & MARTINEAU
10 Exchange Place
Eleventh Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84110
Attorneys for Defendants-
Respondents, Ethel Grimm
Roberts, Rex Roberts and
Juanita Grimm Morris

Daniel L. Berman, Esq.
Peggy A. Tomsic, Esq.
BERMAN & O'RORKE
50 South Main Street, Suite 1250
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
Attorneys for Plaintiffs-
Appellants

M. David Eckersley, Esq.
HOUPPT & ECKERSLEY
419 Boston Building
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
Attorneys for Defendant-
Respondent, Juanita
Kegley Grimm

INDEX

1. Utah Code Ann. § 75-3-1101
2. Utah Code Ann. § 75-3-1102
3. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law
4. Judgment
5. PX-6, Last Will and Testament, Edward Miller Grimm (USA)
6. PX-7, Last Will and Testatement, Edward Miller Grimm
(Philippines)
7. PX-11, Trust Agreement between Edward Miller Grimm and
Edward Miller Grimm II with Schedule "A" and Bill of Sale
attached
8. PX-58, PX-59, Family Settlement Agreement with
Supplemental Memorandum Agreement attached

Tab 1

Part 11

Compromise of Controversies

75-3-1101. Effect of approval of agreements involving trusts, inalienable interests, or interests of third persons.—A compromise of any controversy as to admission to probate of any instrument offered for formal probate as the will of a decedent, the construction, validity, or effect of any probated will, the rights or interests in the estate of the decedent, any successor, or the administration of the estate, if approved in a formal proceeding in the court for that purpose, is binding on all the parties thereto, including those unborn, unascertained, or who could not be located. An approved compromise is binding even though it may affect a trust or an inalienable interest. A compromise does not impair the rights of creditors or of taxing authorities who are not parties to it.

History: C. 1953, 75-3-1101, enacted by L. 1975, ch. 150, § 4.

Collateral References.

Compromise and Settlement—1 et seq.; Executors and Administrators—87.

15A C.J.S. Compromise and Settlement § 1 et seq.; 33 C.J.S. Executors and Administrators § 181.

31 Am. Jur. 2d 135, Executors and Administrators § 258; 80 Am. Jur. 2d 217, Wills § 1099.

Also see Am. Jur. 2d, New Topic Service, Uniform Probate Code.

Claim against estate, power and responsibility of executor or administrator to compromise, 72 A. L. R. 2d 243.

Claim due estate, power and responsibility of executor or administrator to compromise, 72 A. L. R. 2d 191.

Death: power and responsibility of executor or administrator as to compromise or settlement of action or cause of action for death, 72 A. L. R. 2d 285.

Intestate estate, family settlement of, 29 A. L. R. 3d 174.

Tab 2

75-3-1102. Procedure for securing court approval of compromise.—

(1) The procedure for securing court approval of a compromise is as follows:

(a) The terms of the compromise shall be set forth in an agreement in writing which shall be executed by all competent persons and parents acting for any minor child having beneficial interests or having claims which will or may be affected by the compromise. Execution is not required by any person whose identity cannot be ascertained or whose whereabouts is unknown and cannot reasonably be ascertained.

(b) Any interested person, including the personal representative or a trustee, then may submit the agreement to the court for its approval and for execution by the personal representative, the trustee of every affected testamentary trust, and other fiduciaries and representatives.

(c) After notice to all interested persons or their representatives, including the personal representative of the estate and all affected trustees of trusts, the court, if it finds that the contest or controversy is in good faith and that the effect of the agreement upon the interests of persons represented by fiduciaries or other representatives is just and reasonable, may make an order approving the agreement and directing all fiduciaries under its supervision to execute the agreement.

Minor children represented only by their parents may be bound only if their parents join with other competent persons in execution of the compromise. Upon the making of the order and the execution of the agreement, all further disposition of the estate is in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

History: C. 1953, 75-3-1102, enacted by L. 1975, ch. 150, § 4.

Editorial Board Comment.

This section and the one preceding it outline a procedure which may be initiated by competent parties having beneficial interests in a decedent's estate as a means of resolving controversy concerning the estate. If all competent persons with beneficial interests or claims which might be affected by the proposal and parents properly representing interests of their children concur, a settlement scheme differing from that otherwise governing the devolution may be substituted. The procedure for securing representation of minors and unknown or missing persons with interests must be followed. See section 75-1-403. The ultimate control of the question of whether the substitute proposal shall be accepted is with the court which must find: "that the contest or controversy is in good faith and that the effect of the agreement upon the interests of parties represented by fiduciaries is just and reasonable."

The thrust of the procedure is to put the authority for initiating settlement proposals with the persons who have beneficial interests in the estate, and to prevent executors and testamentary

trustees from vetoing any such proposal. The only reason for approving a scheme of devolution which differs from that framed by the testator or the statutes governing intestacy is to prevent dissipation of the estate in wasteful litigation. Because executors and trustees may have an interest in fees and commissions which they might earn through efforts to carry out testator's intention, the judgment of the court is substituted for that of such fiduciaries in appropriate cases. A controversy which the court may find to be in good faith, as well as concurrence of all beneficially interested and competent persons and parent-representatives provide prerequisites which should prevent the procedure from being abused. Thus, the procedure does not threaten the planning of a testator who plans and drafts with sufficient clarity and completeness to eliminate the possibility of good faith controversy concerning the meaning and legality of his plan.

See section 75-1-403 for rules governing representatives and appointment of guardians ad litem.

These sections are modeled after Section 93 of the Model Probate Code. Comparable legislative provisions have proved quite useful in Michigan. See M.C.L.A. §§ 702.45-702.49.

Tab 3

In the Matter of the Estate :
of EDWARD MILLER GRIMM, Probate No. 3720.
:
Deceased.

This cause came on regularly for trial on Tuesday, the 6th day of August, 1985. Plaintiffs were represented by Daniel L. Berman, of Berman & Anderson. Defendants Roberts and Morris were represented by Harold G. Christensen and R. Brent Stephens, of Snow, Christensen & Martineau. Defendant Juanita Kegley Grimm was represented by David Eckersley, of Houpt & Eckersley. Although the principal issue in dispute was the validity of the Family Settlement Agreement, a jury was duly empaneled to try any issues appropriate for jury determination after resolution of the validity issue.

The Court and jury heard the testimony of witnesses, exhibits were offered and received into evidence, and upon both sides having rested, and motions for Directed Verdicts having been made, the Trial Court announced that his decision was that all issues were determined in favor of the defendants, whereupon the jury was discharged.

The Court being fully advised and having announced his decision, now makes and enters the following

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. On February 22, 1926, Edward Miller Grimm (GRIMM) married defendant Juanita Kegley Grimm (JUANITA). They resided in the Philippine Islands from 1926 until 1937. Two children were born of that marriage, defendant Ethel Grimm Roberts (ETHEL), born in 1928, and defendant Juanita Grimm Morris (NITA), born in 1930.

2. In 1937, defendants JUANITA, ETHEL and NITA moved to San Francisco. GRIMM remained in the Philippine Islands, and later served in the U. S. Army in the South Pacific.

3. In 1945, plaintiff Maxine Tate Grimm (MAXINE), employed as a Recreational Director by the American Red Cross, met GRIMM in the Philippines.

4. In 1947, without personally contacting JUANITA, GRIMM came to the United States and filed a Complaint for Divorce in Reno, Nevada (PX-1).

5. GRIMM came to Nevada, established residency for the sole purpose of obtaining a divorce and other than meeting the divorce residency requirement, GRIMM was never an actual resident of Nevada.

6. On June 2, 1947, a Decree of Divorce was entered, divorcing JUANITA and GRIMM (PX-3). Three weeks later, on June 25, 1947, GRIMM and MAXINE were married in Tooele, Utah.

7. Following the marriage, GRIMM and MAXINE returned to the Philippines. They maintained homes in the Philippine Islands and Tooele, Utah, which homes they would occupy when not traveling. They occupied the home in the Philippine Islands most of the time except for the last two years of GRIMM'S life when the Grimms spent more time in Tooele, Utah. GRIMM died November 27, 1977, in the Philippine Islands.

8. Two children were born to GRIMM and MAXINE, Edward Miller Grimm II (PETE), born in 1951, and Linda Grimm Lawyer (LINDA), born in 1953.

9. In 1947, ETHEL, GRIMM'S daughter by his first marriage, returned to the Philippines. She married Pat McFadden an employee of GRIMM. They had six children by that marriage. She divorced Mr. McFadden and married Rex Roberts after 1947.

10. After the Second World War, GRIMM rebuilt and developed his various businesses.

11. In 1959, GRIMM executed two wills prepared by a lawyer in California. The first will was referred to as the Non-Philippine Will (PX-6). The second will was referred to as the Philippine Will (PX-7). In general under the Philippine Will ETHEL and NITA would receive that portion of the estate to which they would be entitled under Philippine law if they were compulsory heirs. Under the Non-Philippine Will, ETHEL and NITA would receive nothing.

12. After 1959, assets situated outside the Philippines became significantly greater. In 1964, GRIMM organized Globe Investment Company, essentially a holding company for real properties located in the United States. In addition, Globe had a wholly-owned subsidiary, Proud Porker Ranch, a hog farm in Tooele, Utah (DX-272, PX-12). On the other hand, Luzon Stevedoring was sold in 1964 and Everett Steamship Lines in 1976, both substantial companies owned by GRIMM and Charles Parsons.

13. In the summer of 1976, GRIMM came to Utah for medical treatment. While in Utah, he caused a Trust Agreement to be prepared.

14. On July 12, 1977, GRIMM executed the Trust Agreement naming PETE Trustee and MAXINE, PETE and LINDA as beneficiaries. When the Trust Agreement was executed, the only assets purportedly transferred to the Trustee were the shares of Globe Investment Company (PX-8).

15. In July of 1977, GRIMM returned to the Philippines. He was not in good health and from September through November of 1977 his health deteriorated to the point that death was imminent.

16. On August 16, 1977, certain assignments were executed by GRIMM purporting to place most Philippine assets of GRIMM in trust (PX-14, 15).

17. It is questionable if the assignments were in fact properly delivered to the Trustee because PETE testified that he placed the assignments in his dad's safety deposit box which was in the name of E. M. Grimm. In October or November of 1977 but prior to GRIMM'S death, MAXINE took the contents out of GRIMM'S safety deposit box and placed the contents in a safety deposit box in her name. It was not until after the death of GRIMM that she placed the trustees name on the box. PETE wrote on November 14, 1977, "Before transferring them (stocks) I think we should get their (Kirton, McConkie) opinion" (DX-302).

18. As previous stated, GRIMM sold his interest in Everett Steamship Company in 1976. At the time of his death on November 27, 1977, GRIMM was owed three payments of \$984,092.31 each, due June 30, 1978, June 30, 1979, and June 30, 1980 (DX-272, p. 9). GRIMM made no effort to transfer the Everett receivable or certain land located in Daggett County, Utah, to the Trust.

19. On October 1, 1977, GRIMM entered Makati Medical Center where he remained until his death. During that time, his medical condition steadily deteriorated. Prior to October 1977, the relationship between ETHEL and REX on the one hand, and GRIMM, MAXINE, PETE and LINDA on the other hand, was cordial, friendly and close, they were all supportive and helpful of one another during GRIMM'S last illness.

20. NITA'S relationship with her father and with MAXINE, PETE and LINDA also was a good relationship.

21. In November 1977, just prior to GRIMM'S death NITA visited her father in the Makati Medical Center. Her trip from California was paid for by Maxine.

22. While NITA was in the Philippines, she also visited with Charles Parsons and his wife. Mr. Parsons was a business associate, friend, and partner of GRIMM in several business ventures located in the Philippines and in Hong Kong, including G-P & Co., FEMOLA and Hong Kong Transportation Company. During that visit, NITA was informed by Parsons that there was a trust in existence and that it was unfavorable to ETHEL and NITA.

23. During GRIMM'S last illness MAXINE had consulted with Britt McConkie, who was in the Philippine Islands for the L.D.S. Church and who was also a member of the law firm of Kirton, McConkie, Boyer and Boyle.

24. In November 1977, before GRIMM'S death, MAXINE directed PETE, who was then residing in Utah, to consult with Mr. McConkie's law firm in Utah and have documents prepared which would treat ETHEL and NITA equally with PETE and LINDA, and give MAXINE one-half of GRIMM'S Estate.

25. Pursuant to MAXINE'S direction, PETE conferred with the firm of Kirton, McConkie, Boyer & Boyle. PETE reported his conference to GRIMM, MAXINE and LINDA by letter dated November 14, 1977 (PX-302). New documents were prepared in accordance with MAXINE'S direction. These documents were sent to the Philippines but did not arrive before GRIMM'S death on November 27, 1977.

26. On December 1, 1977, the day before MAXINE and LINDA left for Tooele, Utah to attend the funeral, REX and ETHEL visited to say goodbye. At that meeting, they inquired about a will. MAXINE denied any knowledge of a will and, in her own words, "blew up." It was a very emotional time for all involved and a very emotional meeting.

27. While en route to Utah, MAXINE wrote a letter to ETHEL which said, in part:

"Dearest ETHEL -

Please forgive me for blowing up - I was so
ashamed.

. . .

I'm also sorry about all the mixup on the will bit.

. . .

Thanks so much for your support during those trying days.

Love,

Maxine" (PX-202)

The letter is indicative of MAXINE'S desire to continue harmonious family relationships with ETHEL'S family.

28. MAXINE also wrote REX, ETHEL'S husband, thanking him for all his help in the past and then. (DX-287)

29. During December 1977, the relationship between MAXINE, ETHEL, REX, NITA, LINDA and PETE was still cordial but strained due to emergence of the trust, which terms were not favorable to ETHEL and NITA. Correspondence and communications were sent and received during the month of December also showing a desire on behalf of all family members to resolve the matter amicably. (PX-75, PX-76, PX-77, PX-78)

30. ETHEL was appointed Special Administratrix by the Philippine court on January 12, 1978, which was in accord with Mr. Salisbury's recommendation. (PX-80) On January 18, ETHEL wrote MAXINE reporting her temporary appointment and informing MAXINE of the hearing date when a regular administrator would be appointed. (PX-81)

31. On January 24, 1978, ETHEL and REX visited MAXINE'S house in the Philippines and without the express permission of MAXINE removed certain valuables from the house for safekeeping. An inventory was prepared of all items removed. (PX-85, 86) After learning of the appointment and the removal of items from her home, Mr. Salisbury prepared a cable to ETHEL objecting to the appointment and made demand that items taken from the house be returned. (PX-88)

32. By January 31, 1978, Mr. Salisbury had been made aware by MAXINE of an income tax case concerning GRIMM'S taxes pending before the U. S. Tax Court, Washington, D.C., which was being handled by Mr. Bert Rand for GRIMM prior to GRIMM'S death.

33. In January and February 1978, Mr. Salisbury was informed and discussed with MAXINE the fact that for Philippine estate tax purposes, the estate of non-citizen domiciliaries of the Philippines included all property of the deceased, real or personal, tangible or intangible wherever situated, except real estate located outside the Philippines and that the tax rate was 60 percent. (PX-272)

34. In January or February 1978, Mrs. Maxine Grimm retained a lawyer in the Philippine Islands, Mr. Edgardo J. Angara. Mr. Salisbury and Mr. Angara exchanged telegrams and conversed by telephone about the numerous questions concerning the Estate,

including GRIMM'S domicile and the effect of Philippine domicile, the law of legitime by which children are compulsory heirs, and its effect on the trust, the Civil Law doctrine of collation, the assets subject to taxation in the Philippines and the doctrine of renvoi as applied to succession from persons having citizenship different from their domicile.

On February 17, 1978, Mr. Angara telegraphed Mr. Salisbury as follows:

Please advise us, therefore, whether the disposition made by the decedent in his Philippine will in accordance with Philippine law are contrary to Utah law.

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