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

this alleged claimed error is extremely easy to refute since it is based upon the simple fact of appointment of executors other claims throughout the Brief are equally unsupported but cannot be so easily shown. It is for this reason that Respondents urge the court to carefully examine the facts of this case as viewed from the Respondents' position before deciding whether the legal principles proclaimed by the Appellants are applicable to the circumstances of this case.

#### POINT IV

THE PLAINTIFFS WERE NOT ENTITLED TO A JURY TRIAL ON INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF SEVERE EMOTIONAL DISTRESS, DURESS AND FAILURE OF CONSIDERATION.

Appellants complain that they were deprived the right of a jury trial as to the issue of intentional infliction of emotional distress based upon their 11th Cause of Action in the civil case (Appellants' Brief, pp. 48-52), and were entitled to a jury trial on their defense of duress and failure of consideration relating to the counterclaim filed by the respondents seeking damages for breach of contract. (Appellants' Brief, pp. 52-54). In order to simplify discussion of this issue the second contention of the appellants will be addressed first.

On August 10, 1983 Defendants filed a counterclaim contending that the Family Settlement Agreement was completely valid and enforceable and that the plaintiffs Maxine, Pete and Linda Grimm had violated the terms of the Agreement thereby giving rise to a breach of contract action. Defendants sought damages in the amount of \$10 million for such breach plus a reasonable attorneys' fee. (PR 1638-1632). On July 29, 1985 the plaintiffs filed their Amended Reply to Counterclaim. (CR 948-942). They essentially claimed as part of

their defenses that the Family Settlement Agreement (the document from which the claimed breaches occurred) had been entered as a result of duress and was without consideration. (CR 942).

At the conclusion of the trial the lower court found in favor of the defendants and against plaintiffs. It found that the Family Settlement Agreement was a valid document, could not be repudiated by the plaintiffs, and could be enforced according to its terms. If the Agreement had not been specifically enforceable, Defendants could have had the right to proceed upon their counterclaim asking for damages as a result of the breaches allegedly committed by the plaintiffs. Had Defendants so proceeded, then, of course, Plaintiffs would have been entitled to assert their legal defenses and the entire matter would have been heard before the impaneled jury.

The lower court in the hearing prior to trial described how this procedure would work. The court stated:

Therefore, I grant you the benefit of having a jury trial, but so that everybody understands, the Court will make the decision as to whether or not the Family Settlement Agreement is valid or invalid, and then based upon that you may proceed on your counterclaim--you may not proceed, but at that time the plaintiffs here cannot say they did not have the right for the jury to hear all of the defenses with regard to coercion, duress and other defenses. That's the way the Court is going to handle this. (Tr. July 26, July 30, 1985 hearings, p. 23).

Plaintiffs have taken the novel approach of arguing that they have been deprived of a jury trial because the defendants were not required to proceed on their breach of contract counterclaim. In other words, Plaintiffs are asserting that they had a legal right to a trial so that they could assert their affirmative defenses. Such an argument is contrary to both logic and civil procedure.

This conclusion can best be seen by taking the following hypothetical example. Assume that "X" sues "Y" for a breach of contract

alleging damages. "Y" answers by stating that the contract is invalid for a number of reasons. "X" decides to dismiss the lawsuit against "Y". "Y" has no right (nor would he have any desire) to require that the trial proceed so that he could assert his affirmative defenses.

Plaintiffs in this case filed their initial Complaint on the basis that the contract was void because of the various reasons listed in the numerous causes of action including duress and failure of consideration. They sought rescission of the contract on this basis. Rescission is clearly an equitable remedy and the lower court found against them. They cannot now complain that because the defendants elected not to proceed upon their breach of contract counterclaim that they have somehow been deprived of a jury right to assert their affirmative defenses.

The analysis concerning their claim for intentional infliction of emotional harm requires a different analysis. No reversible error occurred as to this issue because of the following: (1) under Philippine law there is no cause of action for intentional infliction of emotional harm and therefore the action was not properly before the court; (2) if a cause of action did exist under Utah law, the court determined as a matter of law that the evidence did not state a claim; (3) the plaintiffs were not entitled as a matter of right to have a jury decide this issue and the lower court found in favor of the defendants and against the plaintiffs on the merits; (4) in the alternative, if Plaintiffs were entitled to a jury determination as to this issue, then they have waived it by failing to make proper objection. These matters will now be discussed.

A. Under Philippine Law There is No Cause of Action for Intentional Infliction of Emotional Harm and Therefore the Action Was Not Properly Before the Court.

Under Utah Choice of Law Rules governing causes of action sounding in tort, the law to be applied is the law of the state where the acts constituting the alleged tort occurred. Buhler v. Maddison, 175 P.2d 118, 122 (Utah 1947). In the instant case, the alleged tort of intentional infliction of emotional distress took place in the Philippines and therefore Philippine law must apply.

The Philippines do not recognize a cause of action for intentional infliction of emotional distress without attendant physical injury. Philippine Civil Code §2219 provides that moral damages may be recovered for torts causing physical injuries. Thus, emotional distress inflicted without attendant physical injury directly provable to the alleged wrongful acts cannot be claimed in the Philippines. See generally J. Sangco Philippine Law on Torts and Damages, 513-528 (1973). Plaintiffs failed to allege in their Complaint that the purported outrageous conduct of the defendants caused actual physical injury to the plaintiffs. (CR 72). In addition, there was no evidence introduced at trial establishing physical injury as a result of the alleged conduct of the defendants. For these reasons, therefore, under Philippine law the lower court was correct in concluding that no cause of action existed and in finding in favor of the defendants.

B. If Utah Law is Applicable, The Court Determined as a Matter of Law That the Evidence Did Not State a Claim.

At the conclusion of Defendants' case Defendants' counsel moved for a Motion to Dismiss and Motion to Direct a Verdict as to Plaintiffs' claim for intentional infliction of emotional distress. (TRB 1119). The Court stated during that same proceeding that it found

in favor of the defendants on all issues. (TRB 1121). While admittedly there has been no specific finding entered by the lower court to this effect the intent of the lower court can be ascertained from the trial transcript and from the Judgment entered against the plaintiff

This Court on a number of occasions has concluded, as a matter of law, a claim for intentional infliction of emotional distress has not been stated or proved. In Gygi v. Storch, 503 P.2d 449 (Utah 1972) this Court held that the conduct of a woman towards a man who ultimately killed himself did not give rise to a claim even though her conduct had caused him great mental anguish and he repeatedly threatened to kill himself. See also, Covert v. Kennecott Corp., 461 P.2d 466 (Utah 1969) (Summary Judgment aff'd.); Reiser v. Lohner, 641 P.2d 93 (Utah 1982) (Summary Judgment aff'd.).

In addition, the Federal District Court of Utah on two occasions applying Utah law has also found no cause of action existed as a matter of law. In Amos v. Corporation of the Presiding Bishop, 594 F. Supp. 791 (D. Utah 1984) the court dismissed a cause of action claiming that employees of the Mormon Church had suffered great humiliation because of inquiries and practices relating to the religious beliefs and actions of the employees. The court after reviewing this Court's decision of Samms v. Eccles, 358 P.2d 344 (Utah 1961) stated the following:

Regardless of how the court feels about the appropriateness of the defendant's conduct and, even though the plaintiffs may have been embarrassed, distressed and humiliated, the court concludes, as a matter of law, that the defendant's conduct does not rise to the level of "outrageous and intolerable conduct" contemplated by the Utah Supreme Court. Id. at 831.

In Singer v. Wadman, 595 F. Supp. 188 (D. Utah 1982) the court found that the conduct of the defendants was privileged at the time

that the occurrences complained about by the plaintiffs occurred. This privilege nullified any outrageous or extreme conduct committed by the defendants.

The Restatement of Torts 2d §46 is the foundation for this cause of action in Utah. Comment j discusses the type of severe distress which is required. It states:

The rule stated in this Section applies only where the emotional distress has in fact resulted, and where it is severe. Emotional distress passes under various names, such as mental suffering, mental anguish, mental or nervous shock or the like. It includes all highly unpleasant mental reactions, such as fright, horror, grief, shame, humiliation, embarrassment, anger, chagrin, disappointment, worry, and nausea. It is only when it is extreme that the liability arises. Complete emotional tranquility is seldom attainable in this world, and some degree of transient and trivial emotional distress is a part of the price of living among people. The law intervenes only when the distress inflicted is so severe that no reasonable man would be expected to endure it. (Emphasis added).

Comment h to the Restatement mandates that it is for the court to determine, in the first instance, whether the defendant's conduct may reasonably be regarded as to extreme and outrageous as to permit recovery. Comment g states that "the actor is never liable, for example, where he has done no more than to insist upon his legal rights in a permissible way. Even though he is well aware that such insistence is certain to cause emotional distress." Courts in other jurisdictions have dismissed cases as a matter of law involving conduct similar to that alleged by the plaintiffs.

In Hassing v. Wortman, 333 N.W.2d 765 (Neb. 1983) the plaintiff and defendant were married for over thirty years. They obtained a divorce in 1977 and for over three years the plaintiff claimed her husband continued to harass her even after she had remarried. The lower court entered judgment in favor of the plaintiff but the Supreme

Court of Nebraska reversed. The court held that although the harrassment caused the plaintiff to be embarrassed and humiliated and had resulted in her crying, losing sleep, and consulting a psychiatrist, she had not shown that her distress was so severe that no reasonable person could have been expected to endure it.

In Whiehe v. Kukl, 592 P.2d 860 (Kan. 1979) the court held there as a matter of law that the conduct of the defendant on several occasions in verbal profane outbursts together with an assault by brandishing a pitchfork against the plaintiff was not the type of reckless conduct giving rise to a claim.

Several courts have specifically held that efforts to enforce legal rights or to assert legal claims do not give rise, as a matter of law, to a cause of action. Wade v. Ford Motor Credit Co., 455 F. Supp. 147 (D. Mo. 1978); Batchelor v. Sears Roebuck & Co., 547 F. Supp. 1480 (D. Mich. 1983); Nestlerode v. Federal Ins. Co., 414 N.Y.S.2d 398 (N.Y. Sup. App. Div. 1979); Thompson v. Sikov, 490 A.2d 472 (Pa. Super. 1985).

Even taking the allegations most favorably to the plaintiffs as they have done in their Brief (Appellants' Brief, pp. 50-51) there are still not sufficient facts to allow this case to be submitted to a fact finder. While this no doubt involved a very emotional dispute between family members over a large sum of money a legal cause of action does not exist. Even under Plaintiffs' version of the facts Defendants were always asserting a claimed legal and moral right to an inheritance and while such conduct no doubt caused grief among all of the parties the tort has not been created for the purpose of allowing family members to sue other family members as a result of family financial disputes.



For these reasons, therefore, the lower court was correct in concluding as a matter of law that no cause of action existed as to this claim.

C. The Plaintiffs Were Not Entitled as a Matter of Right to Have a Jury Decide This Issue and the Lower Court Found in Favor of the Defendants and Against the Plaintiffs on the Merits.

Plaintiffs maintained in the lower court that they were entitled to a jury determination as to their 11th Cause of Action for emotional distress. It should be observed that the entire nature of Plaintiffs' Complaint was one for repudiation or rescission of the Family Settlement Agreement or, in the alternative, for damages resulting from it. Plaintiffs acknowledged that they could not plead both damages and rescission and that they would have to elect remedies at the time of trial. (CR 164-165). They obviously elected to seek repudiation and rescission of the Family Settlement Agreement rather than damages. Thus, the only claim which was unrelated to the validity of the Family Settlement Agreement was the 11th Cause of Action seeking damages for the intentional infliction of emotional distress.

This cause of action was independent and separate from the entry of the Family Settlement Agreement. It could have been brought separately at any time with no equitable issues at all being involved. Instead, however, Plaintiffs chose to integrate this cause of action with their equitable claims and as such cannot now claim a right to a jury trial. This Court in Colman v. Dillman, 624 P.2d 731 (Utah 1981) held that where the issues presented are entirely or predominantly equitable in nature, a litigant is not entitled to a trial by a jury as a matter of right. See also, Bradshaw v. Kershaw, 529 P.2d 803 (Utah 1974). The International Harvester Credit case cited by Appellants in their Brief (Appellants' Brief, pp. 48, 50, 53) is not

to the contrary. In that case this Court concluded that since Plaintiffs' Complaint was seeking money damages it was clearly an action at law and was entitled to a jury trial. In dictum the Court observed that litigants had a right to a jury trial on legal claims raised in conjunction with equitable issues. This Court did not discuss the Colman case cited just months before nor did it discuss the situation here where a legal claim is completely separate and apart from the equitable claims being asserted. Defendants submit that the facts and circumstances of this case preclude the 11th Cause of Action from being a jury question. An annotation collecting cases throughout the country dealing with these types of circumstances states the following:

In the absence of a statute or rule of procedure dictating a contrary holding, the great weight of authority has always been to the effect that the inter-position by the defendant in an equitable action of a counterclaim of a legal nature gives him no right to a jury trial, either of the case generally or of the issue raised by the counterclaim. Having elected to assert in equity--as he was certainly not bound to do--a legal counterclaim, the defendant has been held to have elected to have submitted all of the issues raised in the action to trial in accord with the rules of equity procedure. 17 A.L.R.3d 1321, 1327.

In Rosenberg v. Rosenberg, 419 A.2d 167 (Pa. Super. 1980) a former wife initiated an action in equity against her former husband alleging that he had not complied with various terms of a property settlement, support and custody agreement. She sought equitable relief. The ex-husband filed a counterclaim alleging that the wife had not vacated the marital residence contrary to the terms of the agreement, asked enforcement of the agreement, and also sought damages. The court held that where a litigant chooses to initiate an action in equity he has assented to have all matters arising out of the occurrence or transaction decided by the equity court and therefore has waived

his right to jury trial with respect to the case in chief or any properly maintained counterclaim. Likewise a defendant who files a legal counterclaim to an equitable action, rather than asserting it as a separate action at law, has waived any right to have issues of fact thus raised tried by a jury.

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